Book 4:

Quitting my job

(\$4,000/month, early 2021)

Alex West

Book 4: Quitting my job (\$4,000/month, early 2020)

Preface

Before we begin. A disclaimer.

1. Zero advice

Most advice is bullshit. Or someone trying to sell something.

So I'm not going to give you any advice in this book. I want that to be clear from the start.

You only learn by doing. Not by studying. Listening. Or even reading books like this one.

So when you're done, close this book and go build a business. Experiment. Try things. And learn.

2. I don't own any of these ideas

If you find that I'm talking about things that you have thought, said, or even written before, I believe you.

Don't be stupid like me, I sometimes get mad when that happens.

At the end of the day, you are reading this. So we are somewhat similar.

3. This is not a playbook

I made my first million in my late twenties. Worked at an MIT startup. Competed in Muay Thai, kickboxing and BJJ. Completed a marathon and a triathlon. Became part of a Cambridge research study. Invented software that helps people with epilepsy. Traveled the world. And even got to meet and have coffee with one of the inventors of the internet.

That's all true. But none of it was intentional.

I was and still am a total idiot. I just kept going and got lucky. You'll see that very clearly in these books.

Cause luck is a real factor. And if anyone tells you it's not, they are full of shit.

4. These books get better over time

I am not a professional author, that's easy to see.

But my writing has improved since I started.

So these books get better over time.

Hang in there.

5. Too personal, too much information

Finally, this book might become too personal at times.

You can skip those parts.

If you actually end up reading these books to completion, you will know me better than some of my closest friends.

Which is weird. I know. But hey, at least you can call me your friend. And I mean that.

Book a time and we can setup a virtual coffee.

So now, let's begin, my friend.

Table of contents

Introduction

1. Recap

Why I quit my job

- 1. I realized that dream jobs don't exist
- 2. I've had consistent results
- 3. I fell out of love with engineering
- 4. I stopped learning
- 5. I was spinning my wheels
- 6. I took the red pill
- 7. I want to embrace risks
- 8. I've stacked the odds in my favor
- 9. I want clarity of mind
- 10. I want to feel alive
- 11. The time is never right

Quitting my job

- 1. Going crazy
- 2. Handing in my notice
- 3. Escaping the circus
- 4. Enjoying the show
- 5. The dark side of the show
- 6. Lifestyle design
- 7. Cloak and dagger
- 8. It's all about the money
- 9. An offer I can't refuse
- 10. Strip tease show

Appendix

- 1. What's next?
- 2. Time travel

Introduction

That's it. It's done.

I just quit my job to go full time on Cyberleads.

It's been a long time coming. I launched CyberLeads nearly one year ago. But it's been three years since I first started building products seriously and dreaming about this moment.

My first 19 products failed. CyberLeads was my 20th.

If you want the full story of how this all unfolded, you can read the previous books.

In this book we'll talk about something special.

Probably the most important milestone.

Quitting your job to go full time.

Recap

Here is a quick recap of the journey so far.

While in university, I spent 2 years perfecting and launching an app that went nowhere.

Then, I discovered bootstrapping and started building products.

In my first year of building products, I launched 10+ products and managed to get up to \$100/month.

In my second year of building products, I focused on one of those products and managed to get up to \$200/month.

That wasn't enough, so I had to throw in the towel and get a full time job.

Then, in my third year of building products, while working a full time job, I launched CyberLeads and surpassed my salary.

Now I'm about to quit my job and go full time.

This is the story.

Part 1: Why I quit my job

Many people ask me why I decided to quit my job.

And why now, as opposed to sooner, or later.

Well, here are my top 10 reasons.

1. I realized that dream jobs don't exist

The first reason I quit my job was because I realized that dream jobs don't exist.

Actually, I thought that this would be my dream job.

Or to be more precise, I was terrified that it would be my dream job.

I was afraid that I would fall in love with the company and forget all about my dreams and my side projects. They would seem like a distant dream I can hardly even remember.

"Oh yeah. Back in the day when I used to build little side projects..

Cute."

After all, it ticked all of the boxes:

- It was an MIT startup
- That worked with NASA
- Built life saving medical devices
- Offered a good salary, perks and benefits
- Sounded cool at parties and to my parents
- And was the best job I get with my credentials, a CS degree from a free university in the countryside of Greece

Thankfully, I was wrong.

I wasn't talking to NASA scientists at lunch break. And I wasn't saving lives with my code on a casual Tuesday.

I was tucked in a corner, coding internal dashboards.

It was just another job.

2. I've had consistent results

The second reason I quit my job was because I've had consistent results.

I could worry all I want. And I could come up with excuses all day long.

But CyberLeads has made more than my salary six months in a row.

Even though my systems are not ideal. Even though I still don't feel like I'm standing on solid ground.

There are many things I don't like about my business.

- Social is my main channel, which is unstable
- I'm in a market with high churn
- My revenue is wild and fluctuates
- My growth is not as smooth as I would like it to be
- People compete with me all the time
- I make myself vulnerable by sharing all my numbers

But I cannot argue with the numbers and facts.

My growth may be wild and unpredictable because of the nature of social media, the naturally high churn of the market, and my high prices.

But you can't put a saddle on these mystical beasts. Actually, you shouldn't. You should embrace them.

In a perfect world, I would like to have predictable, scalable systems that work while I sleep.

Be in market with super low churn and customer lock in. Have SEO for customer acquisition. Have smooth, predictable, stable growth.

Have MRR as my main metric.

But we don't live in a perfect world.

I have to adjust my sails to the wind. Not try to change the weather.

Yes, my business is wild. But it has been growing consistently.

3. I fell out of love with engineering

The third reason I quit my job was because I fell out of love with engineering.

For years I thought that I loved coding. As soon as I started working as a software engineer, I realized that I didn't love coding, but creating. Software was just my tool of choice up until then.

But writing unit tests and coding internal dashboards is not what I call peak creativity.

Actually, writing code for eight hours per day made me sick of it. That's the reason why many parts of CyberLeads are built with nocode tools.

Also, meetings about scalability, legacy codebases, updating our clusters with the latest tech and sharding our databases for peak performance are not my thing either.

The only thing I enjoyed talking about were product related stuff. Competition. Positioning. Features we should add or remove. Funding. Lucrative markets.

Higher level stuff. Not tweaking and perfecting small components of larger systems.

Maybe I'm not an engineer at heart.

4. I stopped learning

The fourth reason I quit my job was because I stopped learning.

I hardly learned any new technical stuff there.

The things I learned and took with me were all intangible.

- Like seeing what companies look like. Understanding that they are slow. That it's not scary to compete with them. And that most employees are lazy, including myself.
- Or flipping my priorities 180 degrees. Instead of wanting to create a unique product that changes the world, I decided to change my world first. Make money and escape the rat race. Then, I can worry about changing the rest of the world also.
- Or understanding that I don't have to work all day to progress. I only worked for two hours per day, and I made those hours count. Two hours were enough. It was mind blowing.

But, I learned those things straight away. In the first 2-3 months.

After that, I was just coding internal dashboards.

5. I was spinning my wheels

The fifth reason I quit my job was because I was spinning my wheels.

After learning all the intangibles above, my day job became mundane.

I was present in meetings, and executed the tasks that were assigned to me. At a speed that was fast enough to not get complaints from my manager and team.

When I wanted to focus on my day job to get shit done, CyberLeads' growth would slow down.

And when I focused on growing CyberLeads, my performance would dip at my day job.

It was impossible to do great work, at both, at the same time.

6. I was blind but now I see

The sixth reason I quit my job is that I saw another way.

There was a specific day that changed everything for me.

It was the day I realized that CyberLeads' monthly revenue surpassed my monthly salary.

I shared it online and the post blew up, resulting in even greater revenue.

Many people congratulated me and commented small nuggets of wisdom. But there is one specific comment I will never forget.

I'm paraphrasing, but it went something like this:

"You'll never be able to go back now. It's one of those things that once you see it, you can never unsee it again. It happened to me as well. Many, many years ago."

I gained confidence. I knew there was another way now. And I knew that my days working for someone else were limited.

It honestly felt like I took the red pill in the Matrix.

Every meeting. Every performance review. Every 1 on 1 with my manager. They all seemed meaningless.

I will never forget one day specifically, when my manager asked me what I want to achieve in the future.

I didn't understand if he meant personally, professionally or specifically within the company, so I asked for an example.

With a smile on his face, as if he was proposing something I could not possibly resist, he told me:

"Well.. for example.. you may want to become the respected, go-to guy for the 'biomarkers dashboard'."

What. The. Fuck. At that moment, I wanted to laugh. But to be honest, if I didn't have CyberLeads, I would probably want to cry.

7. I want to embrace risks

The seventh reason I quit my job was because I want to embrace risk taking.

School and society tried to teach me to play it safe.

But everything good that has happened to me was through some amount of healthy risk taking.

You cannot live in bubble wrap and expect to grow. You need to leave your comfort zone.

Taleb's Incerto books really changed my perspective on risk, randomness and life. Highly recommend.

They remind you that life is chaotic. And you shouldn't try to change that. Embrace it's unpredictability and make it work for you. Not against you.

You will have to take risks. But not all risks are the same.

With some risks, you should be super conservative. Risks that could ruin you if they go wrong.

Like taking a massive loan. Or robbing a bank. Or putting all of your money on a new crypto coin. You get the point.

Take enough of these risks, and you will pay for it.

These are asymmetric bets, with far more downside than upside.

But with other risks, you should be the opposite. Wild, experimental, and playful. Risks that won't ruin you if things go wrong. And that will

bring you a lot of upside if they go right.

Like starting a new business with zero capital. Or moving to another country. Or starting a new hobby. Or going to a party. Or, even tweeting. Best case scenario, you get customers, build an audience, and make friends. Worst case scenario.. well, there is none!

These are asymmetric bets, with more upside than downside.

Take enough of these risks, and you will be "blessed with luck".

And then you should apply the barbel strategy, which in this case means avoiding medium risk bets with medium upside.

Like climbing the corporate ladder for years on end. For a somewhat guaranteed result. And a somewhat fulfilled life.

I loved this framework. It reminded me of my own way of thinking. But I was never able to articulate or formalize it. I started thinking in it more deeply.

Ok, so what does leaving my day job look like?

In which category of risks does it fall into?

8. I've stacked the odds in my favor

The eighth reason I quit my job is that I've stacked the odds in my favor.

Instead of leaving right away when I could, I decided to stay at my day job longer.

One reason was to honor the contract I had signed. I didn't want to leave the company and my team out of the blue.

Another reason was to continue saving up money.

I managed to set aside almost \$50k. Which means that even if for some crazy reason I was to start making zero dollars per month

starting from tomorrow, I would still have enough runway for 2 years.

- \$10k from my grandfather.
- \$15k from my day job.
- \$25k from CyberLeads.

Thank you grandpa. You don't know it, but you helped your grandson achieve his dreams. Rest in peace. Love you.

So now we have:

- A business that's growing and making more than my salary
- Two years of runway, if everything goes to shit

If things go well, I am free for life. I gain my freedom. I scale CyberLeads. I travel the world. I set even more money aside.

If not, and for some reason CyberLeads goes to zero, I still have two years of runway to figure things out.

And again, even if for some even crazier reason I am completely incapable of generating a single dollar in the next two years, I can always just find another job and try again.

At least I will have a cool story to tell, and I probably will have travelled a lot.

Hmm.. That's a good bet. I'll take it.

9. I want clarity of mind

The most important reason I'm leaving my day job is to have a clear mind. To stop having to think about things that are irrelevant to CyberLeads. Like meetings. Or sprint deadlines. Or what my manager thinks of my performance.

That being said, I'm not planning to work ten hours per day on CyberLeads, either.

My goal, from the beginning, was freedom.

Financial freedom. Location independence. Control of my time.

The same way I don't want to be dragged into meetings all day long, I don't want to work on CyberLeads all day long, either.

Actually, I don't even think it's necessary.

I remember working 10 hours per day on the wrong things back in Greece, going nowhere. You know this very well if you've read my previous books.

This year I've been working for 2 hours per day on the right things, and I had amazing results.

I believe in hard work, but I also believe that direction is more important than speed. And I want clarity of mind to make sure that I'm going in the right direction.

So I don't want more time. I want clarity of mind.

10. I want to feel alive

The final reason I want to quit my day job is to feel alive.

Sometimes you just want to throw yourself in the fire. This is one of those times.

I want a big change. Similar to how this time last year I left Greece and moved to Italy, to start this full time job.

Small incremental improvements are great. Small habits can change your life. Yes. But sometimes you are not looking for a small incremental change, but for a big earthquake that will shake your foundations.

That's when you have the best chances of growing exponentially.

Similar to how the conquerors intentionally burned their ships upon arrival. You either conquer the land, or you die trying.

Of course, that's just a figure of speech. I'm just typing on a laptop.

And I could always just find another job if things don't work out.

The time is never right

I'm very confident in my decision.

I took my time, and I didn't rush anything. I stacked the odds in my favor, and I honestly believe that I will make it.

I had predicted that when the time is right, leaving won't even be a dilemma anymore. And that's how it feels. It's not a dilemma. I see absolutely no reason to stay.

Staying one more year at my day job to save an extra \$10k will change nothing. It will probably just keep me back.

At the same time, I understand that I cannot predict the future.

Sometimes, you just have to say "fuck it" and go for it.

Quitting my job

Ok, it's happening. It's December.

I'm looking at my dashboard and revenue analytics.

I've surpassed my salary for 6 months in a row.

And I have around \$50k in savings.

I can't help but feel like this is it.

It's time to quit.

Handing in my notice

I talk to my manager and hand in my notice.

I explain that I won't be renewing my contract at the beginning of the new year.

He's cool. Or at least he pretends to be.

I wouldn't be canceling my contract, just not renewing, so I could have not notified them at all.

However, I decided to notify them more than 1 month in advance.

Big mistake.

Escaping the circus

From the moment I handed in my notice, all meetings stopped having meaning.

No one cared about my opinion anymore. And it was awkward talking about stuff that would be implemented when I'm gone.

During those meetings, I would either work on CyberLeads, or just open my notes, write and daydream.

Actually, everything you read above were written in those meetings.

With my new, sober, third person perspective, I remember realizing how we were all playing a game.

We are all playing "business". Pretending to be serious, professional adults performing complicated activities.

And overcomplicating what we do to justify our salaries and positions.

Software engineers overcomplicating software. Designers overcomplicating design. Marketing overcomplicating marketing. And so on.

It's performative. It's a circus.

I can't wait to leave.

Enjoying the game

My daily updates became one sentence long again.

Similar to how they were when I first started working at the company, when I was still pure and naive.

"I fixed the bug we found yesterday and now I've moved on to the next feature from the backlog. That's it from my side. Thanks.".

On the other hand, my teammates were still playing the game:

"I ran an investigation for the new service that we want to deploy and scale on AWS and took into account the different parameters, especially given that cost is an important factor. I also started working on our migration to AuroraDB and started working on the implementation of blah blah blah blah..."

I couldn't even understand what he was talking about.

One year ago, I thought it was because I was new.

Now I understand that it was on purpose. By design.

If me, a fellow engineer from the same damn team could not understand, how could a non technical product manager, designer, marketer or anyone else from the company understand?

Well, they couldn't. And that's the point. He was playing the game.

And appeared as a rocket scientist. A genius at work.

It was amusing.

The dark side of the show

Although the show was amusing, there was a dark side to it.

If I had joined the company before building any products of my own, maybe I would never build products.

After all, everything is so complicated!

- You need a team of engineers to build your product
- You need a team of designers to design your product
- You need a team of marketers to market your product
- You need a team of salespeople to sell your product
- You need a CTO to make sure you can scale to the millions
- You need a CEO to come up with the vision
- You need a CFO to take care of the finances.
- And you probably need funding or savings to hire all of these talented A-players, run ads and invest in growth

You cannot do everything by yourself.

Don't be naive and stupid.

Cloak and dagger

My manager was not happy with me.

I have some ideas as to why, but I'm not entirely sure. Completely out of character, he fired me 1 day before my last day. Literally 1 day.

- He might have been mad because I was leaving. He asked me to stay for another 3 months to help them out, but I refused.
- He might have been mad because he was following me on Twitter and saw me focusing on CyberLeads more than my job.

- He might have been mad because I wasn't vocal in the meetings anymore and did the absolute bare minimum after handing in my notice.
- Or like most of my teammates told me, he might have been jealous seeing my progress going from nothing to something.

Which sucks, cause I never felt like we were competing, we were playing completely different games and I liked the guy.

In any case, he fired me for "bad performance in my final 2 weeks at work after handing in my notice".

Which is ridiculous.

Especially since in every single 1-1 we had ever had, he had nothing but great things to say. Zero complaints ever.

I was shocked.

It's all about the money

Looking back, I think I know what happened.

And it's way simpler. It's just money.

As complicated as humans are, they are also really simple.

Most people's behavior can be explained by their incentives.

And the most common incentive is money.

A few months back, they fired a bunch of people due to the pandemic. And cut salaries for the rest of us that stayed.

They promised to give us back the money at the start of the new year. But they didn't want to give me the money now that I would be leaving. Even though I was eligible for it.

So they came up with this bullshit excuse to fire me.

Even though they couldn't fire me technically, as they needed to send me 2 written complaints before, I still didn't want to risk it.

I was setting up my business with my accountant and he told me that if I get fired I might lose all my tax benefits.

So we made a deal.

An offer I couldn't refuse

I explained my position that firing me would cause me huge legal and financial problems.

They explained that they wouldn't fire me if I signed that I don't want that money.

It was a stalemate. I accepted.

I remember talking to the co-founder, and I telling him that "this would have been a warm goodbye, but now it's a cold goodbye and a fuck you".

He agreed. He said "Yes, it has turned into a fuck you."

So much drama. All for \$1.3k. Pathetic for both sides.

I had to remind myself that it was just a speeding ticket. I made that money in a week recently.

Which is still hard to comprehend, because up until very recently I wasn't making anything. It still feels a lot.

I remember them kicking me out of all the accounts, not even allowing me to say goodbye to my teammates or the company in the weekly meeting, as was normal practice.

I was kinda shocked. But not surprised. I've been scammed by companies in Greece before.

Why would I expect anything different?

Strip tease show

Actually, the company doing this to me felt symbolic. It re-enforced my decision.

I'm not meant to work for a company.

I had already forgotten about them, the money and the drama.

I got home, put some music on and started dancing and tearing my clothes off, performing a strip show to my girlfriend.

So much laughing. So much happiness.

I'm leaving the circus.

I'm going into the wild.

Appendix

Update from the future, while publishing this book, so I can be fair, precise and correct.

A few months later, I received a payment from the company.

No communication. No explanation. No nothing.

I thought it was an extra salary or payment sent to me by accident. Which I never thought about again.

But while polishing this book years later, I realized that it might have been that money that they owed me.

I checked the amount and it was indeed that.

Maybe they were afraid I would put them on blast on Twitter. Which I never did. Maybe they just changed their mind. Or maybe it was indeed by accident.

In any case, saner heads prevailed.

And I thank them for that. No bad blood left.

What's next

I just quit my job to go full time on CyberLeads.

I'm going to write about it in detail in the next book.

Now I'm in the process of designing my ideal lifestyle.

It's tricky, because I want to keep things simple, and I also don't want to fall into the trap of working on my business all day.

The whole reason I started this journey was freedom.

Now that I have it, let's see if I'll be able to handle it.

Or if I'll crush under the pressure of having zero constraints.

Time travel

Hey. This is Alex from the future writing this.

I decided to clean up and re-post these blog posts as books.

Nothing changed. Even if I disagree nowadays with things that I said back then.

These books are for free.

But if you enjoyed them, you can do the following:

- Share it on X or LinkedIn
- DM me on X and we can set up a virtual coffee

Or don't. It's ok.

Thank you for reading.

Credits

Finally, special thanks to everyone that inspired and supported me, whether they know it or not.

- Pieter Levels, thank you for building in the open and making this movement happen for all of us. It was your revenue tweets and blog posts that made me realize that I could do the same.
- Courtland and Channing Allen, thank you for building Indie Hackers and putting a name to our little movement. I have read every single post, listened to every single podcast and have day dreamed countless times being on your show.
- Patrick and John Collison, thank you for building the tool that has allowed us all to make a living online. No joke, Stripe changed our lives. In awe of what you're building with Arc Institute. And huge fan of your podcast "Cheeky Pint".
- DHH, thank you for bringing common sense to the tech industry. Reminding us that you don't need to run a VC company and become a billionaire to be successful. And that you can have work life balance.
- Jason Fried, thank you for sharing your contrarian views regarding work. It's inspiring to see how ahead of the culture you were with remote work and SaaS. Your books are awesome too.
- Pat Walls (and Demi), thank you for replying to my emails back in 2021. Also for your awesome daily blog, which definitely inspired me to continue to write daily. Finally, thank you for showing us the power of focusing on one business, which you can adapt and evolve over time.
- Daniel Vassallo, thank you for introducing me to Taleb's books and philosophy, they changed my world view and helped me with my journey. Also for sharing your authentic thoughts and taking a stance, even if it's not popular.

- Stamos Venios, thank you for inspiring me to start this journey and for teaching me that you learn by doing, not studying. Your story inspired me a lot. I've told you this directly, but it's true. You are one of the main reasons I'm here today.
- Sam Parr, thank you for sharing my little business with your audience. Even more importantly, thank you for always being nothing but kind and generous to me. Funnily enough, your show, "My First Million", helped me make my first million.
- Derek Sivers, thank you for having the most awesome blog on the planet. Also for writing all your books and giving everything back to charity. You are awesome.
- Jon Yongfook, thank you for building and failing products at the same time as me, from 2018 to 2020. You launched BannerBear roughly at the same time I found CyberLeads, after roughly the amount number of failures. It was cool to not fail and succeed alone.
- Damon Cheng, thank you for showing us that even indie makers can acquire and grow businesses. Your run from quitting your job till today is legendary.
- Marc Köhlbrugge, thank you for building WIP.chat. Seeing other successful makers public TODOs made me realize that everyone just builds things, fixes bugs and makes mistakes. Like me. This was actually one of my most important realizations. It was frame breaking.
- Danny Postma, thank you for showing us that even indie products can exit to a larger company. And that even after an exit, if you want it bad enough, you can go back to square one and try again and again until you succeed again.
- Jason Cohen, thank you for your amazing blog and talks. Probably the best business blog in the world. And for your talk on boutique bootstrapped businesses. Seriously, that talk helped me niche down, raise my prices and change my life.

- Dru Riley, thank you for running an amazing campaign for CyberLeads together, back in 2020. Those high revenue months were the final push and confidence I needed to quit my job. Thank you my brother. Forever grateful.
- Andreas Klinger, thank you for being a class act and making an effort to help me find a job when I needed one. Also, for always replying to my emails and DMs.
- Vic, thank you for helping me find the next lever of growth for CyberLeads. No joke, you helped me change my life.
- Mubs, thank you for launching 50+ projects in public throughout the years and showing us how fast one can build.
- Andrey Azimov, thank you for your epic 2018 run, becoming Maker of the Year and changing your life. Your scrappiness and determination were infectious.
- Dimitris Raptis, thank you for being one of the very few people from our little hometown that is in our little bubble and industry. Also, thank you for reminding me that working on products you enjoy is more important than the money you make.
- Katerina Limpitsouni, thank you for being the final person from our little hometown that is in our little bubble and industry. I've used your designs and illustrations countless of times. They are awesome.
- Dimitris Kourtesis, Nikos Tsoniotis and Stefanos Tsiakmakis, thank you for accepting me in your startup incubator back when I knew nothing. Thank you for teaching me that killing projects is just as productive as building them. This was one of the biggest lessons I ever learned.
- Justin Jackson, thank you for your essays and podcasts regarding the importance of markets. You might not know it, but they were super impactful to me and helped me end up in the lead generation market, which helped me find CyberLeads and change my life.

- Josh Pigford, thank you for being one of the first people to show your complete list of failed products before your big success. I remember seeing the list and preparing mentally to go through the same. I built 19 failed products, then the 20th changed my life. Thank you.
- Nathan Barry, thank you for being one of the few people continuing to share revenue numbers after reaching millions in revenue. We have small businesses like myself doing that. We also have huge public companies doing that. It's great to have companies in the middle, like yours, do that too. Also, thank you for showing me the value of niching down and focusing on one segment of the market at a time. It really helped me grow CyberLeads and change my life.
- Ali Salah, thank you for being one of the OGs from 2018 and showing me that slow, consistent growth, in a saturated market, while focusing on product, can actually happen. This hasn't been my own experience and it's another example that anything and everything can work, there are no magic recipes.
- Michael Aubrey, thank you for being another story of hard work. Seeing you try for multiple years before finally achieving success is inspiring. Reminds me of my own journey.
- Reilly Chase, thank you for showing me that you can build a boring business, on top of an existing platform, and grow alongside it. Been inspiring to watch you grow over the years, build a team, a house and a life for yourself and your family.
- Rob Walling, thank you for your books and for your amazing podcast. I've listened to so many episodes over the years and there is always something interesting to take from them, because you and your gueststalk from experience, not theory.
- Jack Butcher, Bilal Zaidi and Trung Phan, thank you for the awesome podcast, the great art and the funny memes you've all been sharing with us for the past many years.

- Nico Jeannen, thank you for showing us that building and exiting multiple little businesses is possible. Also for keeping it real and sharing the good and the bad. There aren't that many people that do that and it's inspiring to see.
- Marc Lou, thank you for setting a new standard on shipping fast. I thought I was prolific for shipping 20 products from 2018 to 2020, but you took it to a whole new level. Respect.
- Peter Askew, thank you for blurring the lines between boring and cool. Selling onions online is simultaneously one of the most boring and one of the coolest businesses in the world.
- John O' Nollan, thank you for inspiring me to build a remote business and travel the world. You were one of the first entrepreneurs I looked up to, and still a massive fan.
- Harry Dry, thank you for showing me the power of storytelling and copywriting. Seeing your Yeezy. Dating saga unfold in real time back in 2018 was awesome and your climb to the top of the copywriting world is inspiring.
- Jordan O' Connor, thank you for your amazing blog. I remember reading every single post, multiple times, as you grew your business from zero to tens of thousands of dollars per month, changing your life for yourself and your ever growing family.
- Sahil Lavingia, thank you for building Gumroad, it helped me make my first \$100K online. Also, thank you for challenging the status quo, thinking out of the box, doing things your own way and never being too busy to reply to my DMs back in the day. Truly grateful.
- AJ from Carrd, thank you for showing us that you can build and grow a simple, elegant and useful product by yourself and make great money without charging high prices. Frame breaking.
- Alex Napier Holland, thank you for being real and having authentic thoughts and opinions. Your are one of the very few non BS and non cringe people on my timeline.

- Florin Pop, Mr Purple, thank you for staying humble and ambitious at the same time. It's inspiring to see you set goals and then go after them.
- David Park, thank you for sharing the good and the bad so openly and authentically. Not only in business, but in life too. Your story is inspiring.
- Andrea Bosoni, thank you for showing me the value of being consistent and for being one of my Italian brothers. It's been great your amazing content for all these years, whenever I see your posts I always get a nice feeling of familiarity.
- Flavio Copes, thank you for showing me the value of writing daily, with the simple heuristic of "do stuff, encounter problems, write about the solution". Your website and blog remind me of what the internet was originally made for, real and authentic.
- Lim How Wey, thank you for sharing all of your knowledge around SEO. It was really helpful to me. And thank you for always being kind and supportive, I truly appreciate it.
- Arvid Kahl, thank you for sharing the story of exiting your SaaS business. It's been awesome to see you re-invent yourself and write your books.
- Swyx, thank you for inviting me on your podcast back in the day and for always being kind and supportive. Also for being prolific and constantly working on new things and technologies, it's contagious.
- Dmytro Krasun, thank you for showing me that progress happens slowly, then all at once. Your journey is awesome.
- David Perell, thank you for spreading the benefits of writing and specifically of writing daily. Your essays, podcasts and newsletters are fantastic.
- Noah Kagan, thank you for building AppSumo and for always keeping it real and honest. Seeing you embark on random new side

quests like YouTube and being successful is cool to see also.

- Andrew Wilkinson, thank you for showing me that you can build insane wealth with boring businesses. Your essays and books are amazing. It's great to see your progress from being a freelancer, to running a small studio and being afraid to hire people, to managing hundreds of employees, to running a portfolio of companies, to finally going public. Insane.
- Andrew Gazdecki, thank you for building Acquire (formerly MicroAcquire) and helping indies like myself exit our companies and change our lives. Gazdecki style.
- Steph Smith, thank you for all the amazing essays. I remember reading "How to Be Great? Just Be Good, Repeatably" and realizing that I don't have to be fancy, just consistent. Also, every single one of your MFM appearances was great.
- George Mack, thank you for being one of the few, modern, original thinkers, popularizing new terms and expanding the lexicon. Your newsletter is one of the best I've read in my life, your ability to explain concepts is on another level.
- Jonathan Garces, thank you for all the amazing memories working on CyberLeads together. You are the only business partner I've ever had and helped me more than I could even imagine. It was a blast, my favorite business era.
- Lachlan Kirkwood, thank you for all the amazing chats over the years, going through similar milestones and challenges with our very different businesses. I'm really proud of you exiting your business and re-inventing yourself.
- Vytas Bu, thank you for believing in me and trusting me to work together. Even more importantly, I'm grateful to call you a true friend and thank you for treating me like a brother.
- Andreas Asprou, thank you for reminding me what true wealth is and for pushing me to take a break and write these books. I wouldn't

have done it without you.

- Max DeMarco, thank you for inspiring me to continue being the main character of my life. You always have main character energy and it's contagious. Seeing you grow and always challenge yourself was amazing. Hope to make it to your next Muay Thai fight.
- Niklas Christl, thank you for being one of the most successful yet humble and honest people I've met. That contrast is amazing and inspiring. Hope to see you soon and catch up again.
- Giuseppe Ettore, thank you for growing side by side since 2020. I still remember showing you CyberLeads when it was just an idea, during lunch break at the office. Time flies. We started our jobs on the same day in Milan, we both quit our jobs since then, have achieved a lot and always support each other. And I believe we always will.
- Justin Gluska, thank you for the amazing chats in New York. I hope to see you again somewhere around the world.
- Eracle, thank you for welcoming me to Las Palmas. We had many amazing chats and nights out. Hope to visit again.
- Nikolas Konstantinou, thank you for welcoming me to the island of Cyprus. You have always helped me when I needed help, without asking for anything in return.
- Dawid Cedrych, thank you for being a dream client and for showing me that true business is a win-win game. I'm forever grateful for your trust in me, for encouraging me to write and for always being humble and real.
- Pete Codes, thank you for featuring me in your awesome newsletter and for being supportive over the years. It was also cool meeting in person a few years back.
- Jonny Ward, Daniel Ward, Doug Ward and David Carter, thank you all so much for being generous enough to invite me one of the

impactful coffee/dinners of my life, when you had absolutely nothing to gain from me. I will never forget.

- Mohammad, thank you for giving me perspective on life and how you can continue being happy and positive no matter what happens.
- All the staff and friends at Cafe Nero for giving me free coffee and letting me write my books all day.
- Eneas Lari, for being my best friend in life.
- My family.

And to all the people that have supported me over the years or have shared my books. If I missed you, it's not on purpose.

Constantly updating this list.